
Ocean Avenue LEARNing Academy 

Project 2 RFP Questions 
 

1. The RFP lists “information technology design” and the Ed Spec lists technology FF&E.  To 

confirm scope, are you expecting specification of the following in FF&E: 

o Network Electronics (Switches) (A&E) 

o Servers (A&E) 

o Wireless Access Points  (A&E) 

o Telephone systems and handsets(A&E) 

o Power Distribution Units (A&E) 

o Computer / Tablets / Charging station, smartboards  (Owner) 

o Digital signage, if required (NA) 

o Other systems if required? (Cameras, Security, Card Access Reader) (A&E) 

The expectation is that Technology Infrastructure will fall under the A&E contract for design. 

However, we will expect that the Technology Consultants to coordinate with LEARN’s Director 

of Technology to insure compatibility of all systems. From a budgetary lens, the technology 

infrastructure (for example: network electronics – switches & servers, hard wired and wireless 

access points- & necessary cabling, phone system expansion, security system expansion/card 

reader access, door sensors and surveillance cameras and monitors) would fall under the 

construction, while end-user technology tools (for example: computers, tablets charging stations 

& instructional monitors) would fall under the FFE and Technology budget. 

 

2. Also, based on our reading of the Ed Spec & RFP, please confirm that the CA phase will require 

cabling infrastructure, physical security systems, and AV systems. 

As above, cabling will be necessary to complete the technology infrastructure systems. 

 

3. In the RFP, under Item G “Mandatory Submission Requirements”, there is a tab noting “Price” 

to be provided by the Construction Manager.  There is no formal “Proposal Form” 

included.  Typically we see a “Proposal Form” so that your expectations are met, which can 

include any or all of the following: 

o Fixed price for Preconstruction 

o Construction Fee Percentage (based on GMP cost of work) 

o General Conditions for Construction 

Can you please clarify if a “Proposal Form” will be provided or what type of “Pricing” you want 

from the respondents? 

There is not an Exhibit G. 

 

Pricing should be based on the current twelve (12) month schedule. Should the program extend, 

a monthly fee should be identified. 

 

CMS should use the following Cost Proposal outline for consistency: 

1. Preconstruction (fixed fee)  
This work would include bid development, awarding of contracts and submission of GMP.  

2. Construction Fees  

a. Staffing costs for construction 

b. General conditions/reimbursables 

c. Insurance 

d. Bond Cost 

3. Total Construction Fee 

 



4. In the RFP, under Item G “Mandatory Submission Requirements”, there is a tab noting 

“Additional Documents” to be executed and submitted.  One of these noted documents “Exhibit 

G” is not included in the RFP as an attachment.  Can you please provide Exhibit G for our 

review and submission with our RFP response? 

This was an oversight carried over from a previous version. The Exhibit G does not exist.  

 

5. During the qualifications phase, it was confirmed that an independent cost estimator was not 

required for this project. Can you please confirm that this should be omitted from Exhibit B and 

our fee proposal? 

As indicated in the RFQ process, CMs will be responsible for cost estimation. While it may be 

advantageous for A&Es for confirmation, it is not a requirement and should have been omitted in 

the RFP. 

 

6. Exhibits A and B indicate that a full survey and geotechnical engineering are to be included in 

our fee proposal. Could you please confirm that this is required? 

A full survey has been completed and is posted on the RFP webpage. There may be a need for 

geotechnical engineering for the parking lot expansion. 

 

7. Exhibit A indicates that Environmental Studies and Reports are the responsibility of the 

architect, but are not included in Exhibit B. Could you please confirm if there is an 

Environmental scope for the project?  

A phase 1 environmental study (the study will be posted on the RFP page) has been completed 

and we have also done additional asbestos evaluation following the abatement of the lower level. 

Additional hazmat evaluation of the upper level will be necessary and A&E will be responsible 

to the coordination of the removal and documentation into the bid documents. 

 

8. With regard to the existing kitchen, please confirm if specification of new or modification of the 

existing equipment will be required as part of the scope of work, and whether a foodservice 

equipment consultant will be required as part of the Architect’s responsibilities under Exhibits A 

and B.  

While we anticipate that much of the existing equipment may be able to be reused in a new 

kitchen and server design, it seems appropriate that a food service consultant will be 

advantageous to complete the kitchen and server redesign. 

 

9. Will an existing building layout be provided to the shortlisted firms? 

Yes, this will be included in the “Other Document” link that will be sent to all shortlisted firms. 

 

10. Will a formal price proposal form be provided indicating how our pricing should be broken out? 

See above # 3. 

 

11. With the goals of a new server on the secondary school level, reorganization of some of the 

equipment to address the need for a vocational kitchen for the secondary students and then still 

providing a reorganized food service kitchen for the entire school (and maybe a replacement 

dishwasher), do you want to add food service consultant to the Architect’s team on page 10 and 

11 of the RFP? (Specialty Consultants on page 10 are listed as Owner/Architect) 

See above # 8. 

 

12. Can you provide drop box access (or similar provision) of the PDFs of the 2018 drawing set?  If 

that is too bulky/unwieldy, can you provide at least the land survey, site plan, site utility plan., 

floor plans for all levels and the HVAC floor plans for the lower level? 

See above #9, PDFs of various requested documents will be available on the RFP webpage in 

“Other Documents.” 



 

13. Can you characterize how complete your drawing sets are for the: 

o 1968 Rudolph Addition drawings? 

o The original 1951 building? 

 i.e. full sets, mostly complete sets, some drawings, none at all, etc.)  We don’t 

need PDFs of those yet. 

We have captured all original documents electronically and can be made available as necessary 

going forward. 

14. You’ve asked on Page 11 that we include all copying expenses.  Printing costs add up fast.   In 

this COVID world, many building departments, the SCG and even many contractors don’t want 

paper plans or project manuals.  They want PDFs. So, 

o The SCG only wants one paper set of plans and specs after the PDF review of the PCR is 

done 

o Some Building departments still want 3 sets of permit plans and specs 

o Almost all CMs prefer PDFs and no paper copies. 

 Is it OK if we A/Es include the printing quantities listed above? 

o And how many printed sets of plans and specs does LEARN want during the Schematic 

Design, Design Development, Construction Document (the Record Drawings on Page 

10?) and Bid Phases? 

o We A/Es usually provide our data files to you at the end of the as-built transposing of the 

CMs set.  Do you want us to print a full set in addition to providing the data files? 

This is a reasonable question and while we all want to be as conservation minded as possible on 

this project. LEARN will want printed plans in the final analysis for the building and for LEARN 

headquarters. There will be benefit to having large plans for each stage of the process, but there 

shouldn’t be need of multiple sets until the as-built plans are made for the building. Use the 

suggestions above and the clarifications here to develop a proposed number and associated cost 

for purposes of your proposal. 

   

15. Page 10 says the Acoustic Consultant is the Owner’s Responsibility, but page 11 says the 

Acoustic Consultants is to be included in the A/E services. A&E 

Acoustical Consultants should be included in the A&E services. The inconsistency was an 

oversight that was missed when developing this round of RFPs. 

 

16. Top of Page 3 of the RFP mentions “additions and alterations, in general:” 

o At yesterday’s walk, it was mentioned that no additions were anticipated….that the 

elevator and entry were the only addition that were needed, done in the 1st phase. 

o If there are no additions anticipated, what work would you guess needs the Geotechnical 

Engineering services that you have made our responsibility on Page 11? 

See Above # 6, given current conditions there may be a need for limited geotechnical 

engineering for parking lot expansion. 

 

17. We’ll fill out the bid form on page 12.  But do you also want us to ‘BREAKOUT COSTS” as 

titled on the middle column on Page 11? 

The intent of the form on page 11 is that you acknowledge that the services listed are included in 

your proposal. They do not have to be specifically spelled out on this form, however, initialing 

that they services are included is required. 

 

 


